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This simple but very handsome brick house is three
bays in length and two stories in height, with a large
chimney enclosed within each gahle wall. A later one-story

wing was erected at one end.

The tract on which this house is situated was
patented in 1634 as St. Michael's Manor. The present
structure on Deep Creek may have been built by James
Richardson (1752-1821), whose gravestone is in the Richardson
family cemetery here. Stones in the gravevard date

from 1821 to 1866.
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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The St. Michael's Manor house is located on a point on the southeast shore of Long

Neck Creek. The family graveyard containing the remains of the builder of the house,
James Richardson, and his family is about 550 feet northeast of the house on the next
point of land, about forty feet from the creek. These entities reside one-half mile
northeast of Maryland Route 5 (historically known as the Leonardtown-Point Lookout
Road), a short distance north of Point Lookout, site of the Union prisoner of war
camp some sixty years after constructuion of the house. A Civil War monument to the
Confederate prisoners is on the east side of Route 5 at the entrance to the present
property. Of the three manors granted to Leonard Calvert--Trinity, St. Gabriel's,
EndkSt. Michael's--St. Michael's was the largest, with 1500 acres that included Point
ookout.

The house was built in 1805 by James Richardson, as evidenced by an inscribed
brick: "I L R + 1805" on the exterjor of the southwest chimney. Other evidence,
such as the basic house form in proportion and plan, interior details, construction,
and hardware, support this 1805 date. In the 1798 Federal Direct Tax assessment a
frame house was Tisted for Richardson. The size of his family (12 children) and his
probable station as a sea captain, apparently led to the construction of a grander
house.

The house is a three-bay, two-story with attic brick structure that faces south.
It has interior end chimneys and measures 3] feet wide by 32 feet deep with exterior
walls 20 inches thick. The walls are laid in Flemish bond, but have been stuccoed
since 1935. The brick has remained exposed on the east end under the roof of the
early 20th century addition. There is typically no basement due to the high water
table in this part of the county.

The south facade has the main entrance in the central bay flanked by two 6/6
Tight windows. The second floor contains three 6/6 1ight windows, and there are
two dormers on this slope of the roof. The window and door openings throughout
the house are in their original size and location but have new sash and doors.
The windows correctly have 6/6 sash, with the second story windows narrower than
those on the first floor.

The north facade has the same fenestration except that the central first floor
bay has been covered by a one-story, one-bay addition containing a bathroom. The
east end has two small windows at attic level flanking the chimney flue and a door
in the south bay of the second floor which led to a former deck. The west end also
has two Touvered windows at attic window and a window in the south bay of the second
floor. The entire first floor on both ends if covered by later additions.

SEE CONTINUATION SHEET #1.
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(DESCRIPTION CONTINUED)

The original floor plan consisted more likely of hall and parlor with a central
rear stair hall and two flanking rooms, a plan often seen in St. Mary's County in the
first quarter of the 19th century. The present plan has a hall and parlor made into
one large front room. There are eight fireplaces, four on the first floor and four on
the second. The northeast first floor fireplace is presently covered over.

Roof rafters are mortised and tenoned at the ridge, and the collar ties which frame
the attic ceiling show both pit sawn and hewn tool markings. Both hand wrought nails and
machine cut nails with hand wrought heads have been found in the attic.

On the second floor, the main bedroom (southeast corner) contains the original
mantel, fine paneled wainscot, and closet beside the fireplace. The mantel has pilasters,
a frieze with diamond panels, bed moldings, and shelf. In the closet wrought head nails
were found, along with boards of 14 to 16-inch fine grained yellow pine, tongue and
grooved and rabbited, on the side and rear walls. The closet has two 12-1ight doors
above the wainscot; below two panels of the wainscot; below two panels of the wainscot
operate as cupboard doors.

Other rooms contain original mantels with shouldered architrave, frieze, and cornice.
The open-string stair from the first to the second floor is in its original form. The
recessed vertical panels below the stringer and the closet door beneath the stair are
original. The step ends are decorated with scrolled trim. The parlor closet is
similar to that in the bedroom above, without the doors below. The parlor mantel is
identical to that described above for the bedroom. Hand wrought T-head sprigs with
spade tips and machine-cut, wrought head nails are found inthe walls and floors of
the house.

The house presently has 20th century garage, porch, and foyer additions (see plan)
replacing earlier additions to the house. Fortunately, the basic interior layout of
the 1805 house has been altered only in minor ways, and the original conditions can
be recovered through a thorough restoration examination.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

St. Michael's Manor is especially important for its architecture and its contribution
to local history.

From a technical standpoint of interest to those who do preservation/restoration work,
St. Michael's Manor, may be one of the earliest firmly dated structures in the southern
Maryland area to contain machine-cut nails. In the roof rafters, Cary Carson has found
both hand wrought nails and machine cut nails with hand wrought heads. Similar nails
were found in the rotted first floor fireplace structural members by this writer. T-head
hand wrought spade tip sprigs have also been found.

The basic form of the house remains unchanged from its construction in 1805. The
original interior partitioning has survived, except for removal of the wall between hall
and parlor. The fireplaces remain, though the kitchen unit has been covered over.* The
original mantels remain on the fireplaces. In addition, the second floor main bedroom
has significant fabric remaining in the fireplace detailing, the closet, and fine,
paneled wainscot. On the first floor, the stair is paneled, and the closet door under
it remains. The window openings are as the original, and the fine Flemish bond brick
1ies just beneath the stucco. The first floor fireplace mantels remain, and the parlor
closet is intact. When additions were put on, they were attached without gutting the
original, or even remoying portions of the walls or cutting new openings.** In short,
there is sufficient evidence remaining to enable a resotration, and the quality of the
remaining fabric is quite good.

*As well as the one gboye it in the second floor bathroom
**Except for a door from the southeast bedroom to a past deck put on after 1935.

— SEE CONTINUATION SHEET #2.
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(SIGNIFICANCE CONTINUED)

In terms of local history, Barbara Raley, who has done extensive research from
present times back to Leonard Calvert in 1634, reports that there are complete geneologica
records for the Richardsons and their twelve children. Since there was only one unmarried
son, the immediate name disappeared, but the daughters figured extensively in family
histories throughout St. Mary's County. The remaining house in conjunction with the
graveyard is unique physical evidence of this family record, and testifies to their status
as an upper middle class farming and water commerce family (one source claims that
Richardson was a sea captain). Besides being the only remaining St. Michael's Manor
house, it is a standing record with its graveyard of the owning family at a time of
great historic turmoil.* The chosen acreage reserves the house and graveyard with all
the land and waterfront between in the hope that hthese entities be preserved for their
present and historic ambience by showing the house in a setting that is not appreciably
different from that in 1805 (there are no intrusions), to reflect the dependence on water
access by the Richardsons, and for future historic studies.

*Eight of the twelve children are buried there.
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Maryland Historical Trust

MEMO TO: PMJ
FROM: EKC
RE: ST. MICHAEL'S MANOR 29 August 1979

As requested, Orlando Ridout V and I visited St. Michael's Manor
(SM-25) near Scotland in St. Mary's County on 20 August, where we met
Mark Velsey, the architect retained to prepare the NR nomination form
for the owner.

Both Orlando and I concluded that although the building possesses
several important architectural features, the GCC's concern about the
extent of alteration was indeed justified. I think we also concur that
the present building, largely because of these alterations which have
significantly conpromised the structure's integrity, is not now of suf-
ficient quality to warrant NR status.

Mr. Velsey cited repeatedly some research Cary Carson did for
St. Mary's City Commission in which he called St. Michael's Manor
a "benchmark" house primarily because of various nail types evident
in the roof structure which could be dated with certainty on account
of the 1805 inscribed brick in the outside wall of the west gable
fireplace. As Orlando pointed out to Mr. Velsey, this kind of in-
formation is very useful to field surveyors and architectural his-
torians but does not alone substantiate a nomination especially in
view of the following observations:

(1) Flemish bond exterior was totally covered by 1930's applica-
tion of stucco;

(2) all original flooring has been replaced by circa 1950's
parquet floors;

(3) 20th c. additions to the west, east and north are not par-
ticularly sensitive and obscure what Cary Carson called
the handsome and "chaste" proportions of the original block;

(4) while some original woodwork remains in situ (notably the
first floor parlor and master bedroom mantels which possess
tho same lozenge design and the four other identical but _
plainer mantels--all recorded by Cary Carson), the contention tha
any of the stair hall or master bedroom wainscot is original
is questionable, and the walls throughout the house have
been replastered or stuccoed to such an extent that their
original character is virtually indecipherable;

- (5) also questionable is the supposition of a hall-parlor plan

as there is no discernable evidence that there was ever a
wall dividing the southern "parlor" into 2 rooms.

Shaw House, 21 State Circle, Annapolis, Maryland 21401 (301)269-2212. 269-2438
Department of Economic and Community Development
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